
 

Public Works Meeting 

April 18, 2017 

Page 1 

 

North Hudson Public Works Meeting 

Village Hall 400 7
th

 Street North 

Tuesday, April 18, 2017 @ 5:30 p.m. 

 

 

Call to Order: roll call 

Chair Pike called the meeting to order at 5:32 p.m.  Answering the call were Trustees Head and Zais.  A 

quorum was present and the meeting was duly noticed.  Also in attendance were Public Works Director 

Patrick Moos, Village Engineer Kevin Oium, Cedar Engineering representative Ryan Jones, and 

Recording Secretary Anne-Marie McDonald. 

 

Minutes approval from March 21, 2017 Public Works Meeting 

Motion (Zais/Head) to approve the March 21, 2017 Public Works meeting minutes.  Motion 

carried.   

 

Pike welcomed Trustee Tim Zais to the Public Works committee. 

 

Public Works Building Purchase Options 

Pike stated that there is no new information for the Public Works building options, so this item is tabled. 

 

Catch Basin Reconstruction 

Moos reported that the Public Works staff is taking photos of each catch basin, and recording their 

condition and required repairs.  The Flex Seal company made repairs on about 23 catch basins in The 

Ridges.  When they return to North Hudson, their desire is to work on the catch basins which need more 

extensive repairs.  Pike asked how many catch basins can be repaired with the $50,000 budgeted for 

2017 repairs.  Moos thought that at a minimum, the originally planned 67 basins can be repaired with the 

budget amount.  In addition, 12 catch basins require total reconstruction, and there is money budgeted in 

2017 to reconstruct five catch basins, at around $4,000 each.  Pike confirmed with Moos that any money 

remaining from the $50,000 repair budget can be put towards reconstruction costs.  Moos reminded the 

committee that the department started repairs on the newer catch basins to keep them in good condition 

for a longer period of time.  As catch basins are repaired each year, the documentation will be updated to 

reflect what repairs were completed and when they were done.  The goal is to have the catch basin 

repairs completed on a rotating annual schedule.  It was discussed whether the reconstructed catch 

basins should be treated with Flex Seal immediately to protect the new construction.  Oium and Moos 

stated that the Flex Seal kits can be purchased and the Public Works employees can apply the coating to 

the newly reconstructed catch basins.  Pike asked Moos to consider applying Flex Seal to the 

reconstructed catch basins.   

 

Based on a request at last month’s Public Works meeting, Oium reported that there are 320 catch basins 

in the village.  Pike asked Oium to count the manholes in the village and report back at the next meeting.  

The goal is to create a repair schedule for each year, and to even out the budget amount required for 

repairs each year. 

 

 



 

Public Works Meeting 

April 18, 2017 

Page 2 

 

Wisconsin Technology Networking, LLC request to install transportation utility pole in right-of-

way at Highway 35 and North End Road 

Ryan Streff of Mobilitie/Wisconsin Technology Networking, LLC (WITN), explained the background 

of his company’s request to install a transport utility pole in North Hudson.  WITN is a wireless 

infrastructure company which works for wireless service providers.  In this instance, WITN represents 

Sprint, which wishes to expand their data capacity in North Hudson.  Each transport utility pole can 

accommodate up to four cellular providers with data capacity.  The pole would be used to transport data 

to other macro sites in the area, due to increased data usage requirements in the community.  In order for 

transport utility poles to be installed in the Wisconsin Department of Transportation (DOT) right-of-

way, WITN must receive approval from the jurisdiction in which the pole would be installed, in this 

case the Village of North Hudson.  The preference is to install the pole in an industrial or commercial 

area rather than a residential area.  Approval by the Village is one step in the process for WITN to obtain 

approval from Wisconsin DOT to install the pole.  The pole would be owned by Mobilitie/WITN and 

the technology would be leased to Sprint or other wireless carrier.  Head voiced some concern about the 

pole being located on the main thoroughfare in North Hudson.  Pike asked why the Village would not 

charge rent if the pole is installed in North Hudson.  Streff explained that the pole’s location is in the 

Wisconsin DOT right-of-way, and there is an agreement being negotiated with the state.  Pike and Head 

recalled that similar discussions have taken place previously in the Village to install a pole and rent the 

tower to wireless providers.  Streff explained that the location of the data transmitter is significant to 

diversify the network.  Zais asked how tall the pole would be; Streff stated that the pole would be 120 

feet tall, with a 3.5 foot base.  The dish on the pole would be 3.5 feet in diameter.  Head said that it 

needs to be noted that this is not a small telephone pole, it’s a large, industrial-looking pole in the 

WisDOT right-of-way.  Streff informed the committee that Mobilitie/WITN has obtained their state 

certification as a CLEC [competitive local exchange carrier] and an ATU [alternative 

telecommunications utility], so they have the same rights to have their equipment in rights-of-way as 

other providers.   

 

Head asked why that site was chosen for the proposed pole location, rather than a quarter mile north on 

Highway 35 outside the village.  Streff explained that his company’s engineers analyze wireless usage 

data and determine where the poles must be located to support the populations they serve – it is a 

balance between finding a spot that works for the community and not locating a tower in a residential 

area.  Not all proposed sites are located in rights-of-way; they are located where they will do the most 

good for the community being supported.  Head raised two concerns: First, could the location of the pole 

be moved to village property so the village can collect rent; and second, does the village want a big pole 

on the main thoroughfare going through the village?  Zais asked whether there is a second choice 

location for the pole site.  Streff explained that his company utilizes its status to locate in the DOT right-

of-way whenever possible.  If Mobilitie/WITN negotiates an agreement with a jurisdiction to locate a 

pole on their piece of property, Mobilitie/WITN would pay the same amount of rent as they would to the 

state of Wisconsin.  Pike and Head discussed potential issues with this installation, including the 

aesthetics of the pole and the village’s desire to collect rent from a pole installation.  The next step is for 

this issue to be presented to the full village board.  Streff reiterated that Mobilitie will use their CLEC 

and ATU status to locate in a right-of-way whenever possible.  There are instances where the proposed 

location was moved to a jurisdiction right-of-way, but this is a negotiated change.  Head asked whether 

the City of Hudson has wireless transmission pole sites.  Hudson has identified two sites, near their 



 

Public Works Meeting 

April 18, 2017 

Page 3 

 

water tank site and near Home Depot in the right-of-way.  Mobilitie is negotiating an agreement with the 

City of Hudson. 

 

Streff mentioned that Mobilitie/WITN is working on reorganizing its proposed transit pole sites.  He 

suggested that the village do its research to be prepared when these offers are presented, whether by his 

company or by other companies.  Pike made it clear that North Hudson wants the technology in the 

community.  Zais asked Streff to provide information on his company’s CLEC and ATU certifications.  

Streff stated that he will send the information to Village Clerk-Melissa Luedke.  Streff recommended 

that the village wait until a final site has been identified by his company before making a presentation to 

the village board.  Streff wants the Public Works committee to have all the information they need 

regarding this proposal and the reorganization of Mobilitie/WITN’s sites before the village moves 

forward.  Pike asked Streff to attend the May Public Works committee meeting to assist with crafting a 

proposal for the village board.  Streff suggested that they schedule his attendance at a committee 

meeting after the reorganization of the sites is completed. 

 

Wisconsin State Highway 35 Project cost sharing 

The Wisconsin DOT is looking for input from the village for various elements of the project.  Oium 

reported that the state is looking for input on the following areas of the project: 

1. Landscaping – trees planted in the boulevard 

2. Street lighting – standard LED lighting with aluminum poles (existing lights are on utility poles 

with overhead masts and new ones would be different style) 

3. Construction of a new sidewalk on the east side of Hwy. 35 from Michaelson Street N. to 

Sommers Street N. 

 

The landscaping and sidewalk split is 80% state responsibility and 20% for the village.  The street 

lighting is 50/50 split.  The village’s share of landscaping is estimated at $3300, assuming 300’ spacing 

of trees on both sides of the road.  The village’s responsibility for the sidewalk would be about $10,000.  

The village’s share of street lighting costs would be about $90,000 for their standard aluminum light 

poles.  Currently there are 16 lights on Hwy 35.  The state calculates street lighting spacing at 140 feet 

apart, staggered on both sides of the street, which would come to 36 lights to be installed.  Pike voiced 

concern with the number of streetlights proposed to be installed, compared with the number currently in 

use in that section, and the cost of electricity to illuminate the extra lights.  Pike asked Oium to calculate 

the electricity costs for the proposed streetlights.  Pike asked Oium whether the village is allowed to pick 

the tree varieties to be planted, and Oium stated that the village can do so.  Moos suggested that the 

committee consider what potential tree damage could be done to sidewalks and curb & gutter before the 

varieties are selected.  Pike asked whether the trees could be planted far enough away from sidewalks to 

prevent damage; Oium stated that the trees are planted in the boulevards.  Pike asked Oium whether 

Cedar Corp. has done research to determine tree varieties which limit damage to surrounding curb & 

gutter and sidewalks.  Oium stated that his firm has landscape architects who can investigate this issue.  

Pike asked Oium to speak with them and bring back some information on suggested tree varieties.  Jones 

shared that the City of Eau Claire promotes tree planting in the boulevard by residents and has an 

approved list of tree varieties which grow to a certain height and have lower root structures to avoid 

damage to curbs and sidewalks.  Pike would like to see that list. 

 



 

Public Works Meeting 

April 18, 2017 

Page 4 

 

Head asked whether there is any cost-sharing of the utilities with the State of Wisconsin for the lights 

along Highway 35.  Oium stated that, since the lights are owned by the village, the village has to pay all 

utility costs.  Pike asked whether the village is required to have the recommended number of streetlights 

installed.  Oium said that the village can work with the state during the design phase to determine the 

number of lights to be installed as part of the project.  Pike would like to learn the per-pole cost for 

installation and for electricity, so that information is available for the full board to consider. 

 

Head asked whether the cost of construction for the sewer and water main can be shared; Oium stated 

that those costs are 100% the responsibility of the village.  Pike and Oium said that the sewer and water 

main in this section are the oldest in the village and one of the driving forces behind the construction 

project.  Oium shared that a preliminary estimate of the village’s portion of the storm sewer upsizing 

will be $200,000.   

 

Oium has had discussions with the DOT project manager about the sidewalk.  Sections of the existing 

sidewalk are four feet wide and the recommended size is five feet.  The decision previously had been 

made that the sidewalk would be replaced rather than spot replacements in the construction area.  Pike 

asked whether the state would let the village install a new sidewalk at four foot width rather than five 

feet.  Oium stated that the state would determine the width of the sidewalk, and may entail additional 

cost that is not in the preliminary cost estimate.  Oium will continue to have as much of the cost shifted 

to the state as possible. 

 

Zais asked what is the process regarding the village’s input on these items.  The Public Works 

committee would make a recommendation to the village board, and Oium would bring the village 

board’s proposals to the DOT project manager.  Oium suggested the committee get more information 

and discuss at the next meeting.  Pike recommended that Oium document the exact costs including the 

state’s and village’s shares, what items the village can provide input on, and what are the village’s 

options, so the Public Works committee can present a straightforward document to the village board.  

Zais suggested the utilities cost be included on the information sheet for the board.   

 

Pike asked whether there are any other sources of money to be used for this project.  Oium stated that 

the sinking funds have been set up for this purpose.  Pike asked whether the Village Administrator, 

Gloria Troester, knows about the total cost of the project.  Oium said that he has had discussions with 

Troester regarding the cost of the construction project. 

 

Artisan North preliminary plat review 

Pike asked the committee members to refer to the previously distributed documents related to the 

Artisan North proposal.  He reminded the members that their role is to concentrate on the public works 

aspects of the project.  Mark Erickson, of Landsted Companies, reviewed what has happened with this 

project to date.  In May of 2014, Erickson came before the Public Works committee and was given 

permission to go to the next step of the approval process.  He then went before the Park Board and the 

Plan Commission, where he also received approval.  At that time he purchased the Burnley property, but 

his financing fell through.  After a two year pause, Erickson is ready to move forward with the project.  

A few minor changes have been made to the original plan.  After erosion was discovered south of the 

right-of-way, a trail to Lake Mallalieu was removed.  In addition, a previously planned large common 

area in the development was removed to increase the size of the lots.  There is a very small common 



 

Public Works Meeting 

April 18, 2017 

Page 5 

 

area which could later be used as an additional lot.  The current plan contains eight lots.  Head voiced 

his concerns with possible erosion with some of the lots, due to the steep grade.  Pike reiterated that the 

committee’s role is to analyze any impact to the Public Works infrastructure of the village.  Head is 

concerned with erosion flowing into the storm sewer system and its possible effects on other property 

owners in the area.  Oium clarified that the areas the Public Works committee deals with are storm 

water, sanitary sewer, water main services, width of street, and whether curb and gutter are installed on 

the development.  The recommendations of the Public Works committee will be included in the 

comments sent to the village Plan Commission, which meets on May 3, 2017.  Oium addressed Head’s 

concern about erosion: he recommended putting a conservancy easement on any grade greater than 20%, 

similar to what was done in The Ridges.  Erickson is in agreement with the conservancy easement on 

those slopes.  Erickson stated that the proposed home locations and grading plan will ensure that no 

homes will be on steep slopes.  Grading will be done to build up the lots to allow for gravity drainage to 

the storm sewers and to lessen the steep grade.  Part of the grading will result in trees being removed, 

but there is money in the development plan to plant new trees.  A storm water pond will be included 

north of Lot no. 5. 

 

Pike asked Oium whether, from an engineering point of view, there are any water issues with the 

proposed development.  Oium stated that he contacted the City of Hudson Water Department.  In order 

to provide services to the new development, the gravity sewer will be extended about 600 feet and the 

water main was proposed to extend and dead-end with a hydrant at the cul-de-sac.  Oium recommended 

that the water main have a loop to another main, rather than ending in a dead-end.  Erickson agreed to 

that configuration.  Pike confirmed that Oium will include that recommendation in the engineer’s 

comments.  Everything else related to water is okay in the plan.  The proposed sewer line has minimum 

slope and is rather shallow.  Landsted plans to insulate the sewer line, and Oium recommended that the 

service laterals be insulated, as well.  They have proposed eight inch diameter for the water main and the 

sewer line.  The proposed storm water pond will have an eight foot cut into the side slope.  Oium will 

recommend that a soil bore be taken at the storm water pond to determine the ground water elevation.  

Oium explained how the proposed infiltration pond will be drained from above and into the storm sewer 

in the development cul-de-sac.  The homeowners association will own the infiltration pond, so any 

maintenance will be done by the homeowners association.  Pike asked whether any future issues 

resulting from the infiltration pond will be the responsibility of the homeowners association, and Oium 

confirmed that they would be.  Oium explained that there are several configurations for ownership of 

infiltration ponds – some are owned by the homeowners and some are owned by the village. 

 

Oium just received the drainage calculations and storm water plan from Erickson’s company, and he has 

to review.  His analysis will be included in the engineer’s comments which will be presented to the Plan 

Commission. 

 

The only proposed change to the public utilities plan Oium will recommend is the looping water main to 

replace the proposed dead-end main.  Pike asked about streetlights in the development.  Erickson’s 

proposal is to include two streetlights in the cul-de-sac.  The installation of the lights will be paid for by 

Landsted, and the village will pay for electricity.  Moos asked whether the village will be responsible to 

maintain the lights after installation.  Oium explained that, after acceptance and the utilities are turned 

over to the village, the village is responsible for maintenance.  Oium stated that the typical warranty for 

streetlights is one year.  Pike asked whether a better warranty could be negotiated, so the village isn’t 



 

Public Works Meeting 

April 18, 2017 

Page 6 

 

responsible for repairs soon after the installation is done.  Oium explained that those types of 

arrangements are spelled out in the developer’s agreement, which will be drawn up by the village 

attorney. 

 

Pike asked that Oium or someone else in the village administration oversee this project as it progresses, 

and provide updates to the Public Works and other committees.  Pike asked Oium to calculate the 

electricity cost of the streetlights, so that information can be provided to the village board.  Erickson 

offered to provide updates to whatever contact person the village provides.  Pike explained that he wants 

someone in the village to be responsible for maintaining contact with Erickson to monitor progress and 

to verify that the project is following the developer’s agreement.  Zais asked that Erickson provide 

updates at milestone points in the project, and Erickson agreed to do so.  Head and Pike expressed their 

agreement with the proposed development.  Zais asked about the age of the current water infrastructure.  

Oium said that the development to the east of the proposed project is not terribly old and the 

infrastructure is good.  Oium confirmed with the City of Hudson’s Water Department that the 

infrastructure can handle eight more homes. 

 

Pike asked about any issues related to emergency vehicle access.  Oium stated that there was some 

discussion about Lot no. 4 (“flag lot”).  Erickson spoke with the Hudson Fire Department; Lot 4’s 

driveway length is 150 feet and is not steep, so the fire department’s 1500 feet of hose would not have 

trouble accessing the home on that lot.  Pike asked Moos whether there are issues with snow removal in 

the cul-de-sac; Moos didn’t have any issues.  Oium stated that the cul-de-sac and street are large enough 

to accommodate parking on both sides of the street. 

 

Head asked whether Artisan North will be a 55-plus community.  Erickson said that it was originally 

planned to be 55-plus, but it no longer is and will be more diverse.  Erickson noted that four of the eight 

lots in the development have been spoken for.  Pike asked whether the Public Safety committee has 

looked at this proposal, specifically about street parking.  Erickson has not been before Public Safety as 

yet.  Pike asked Erickson whether Erickson had investigated connecting the street in Artisan North to 

another street.  Erickson said that no property was available to connect to his development. 

 

Motion (Head/Zais) to recommend Artisan North preliminary plat review be brought to the full 

village board for discussion and approval.  Motion approved. 

 

Chair Update 

Chair Pike has nothing further to report. 

 

Engineer’s Report 

Oium provided an update on the Wisconsin Street North construction project.  The engineering firm has 

been selected and approved by the village board.  A form has been sent to Wisconsin DOT with this 

information, and has been approved by DOT.  The next stage will be negotiations on a three-party 

agreement.  Oium estimated that no design work will take place until late summer or early fall of this 

year. 

 

 

 



 

Public Works Meeting 

April 18, 2017 

Page 7 

 

Director’s Report 

Moos reported that hydrant flushing and painting have begun, and cleanup of the back section of Glen 

Oaks Park which abuts the shop yards is in full force.  The department has started thatching and cleaning 

up the parks.  Curb painting will start soon.  Pike asked when street sweeping will begin.  Moos stated 

that street sweeping is scheduled for next month.  Pike asked whether Glen Oaks Park is the location 

where brush was dumped in the past.  Moos said that it is, and that he wants to get that all cleaned out, 

then create areas for compost, mulch, and wood chips.  Moos said the cleanup will take all summer to 

complete. 

 

Pike asked whether Moos has received any applications for the open Public Works position.  Moos said 

he is doing some calling.  Pike suggested that if Moos doesn’t get the position filled, he submit a request 

for summer temporary help to the Public Works committee. 

 

Future Agenda Items 

Wisconsin State Highway 35 cost sharing; Sale of 1998 International plow truck 

 

Adjournment 

Pike adjourned the meeting at 6:47 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted by,  

 

 

Anne-Marie McDonald 

Recording Secretary 


